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MEMORANDUM 

 

July 13, 2023 

 

 

TO:   Evan Glass, President  

   Montgomery County Council 

 

FROM:  Marc Elrich, County Executive 

 

SUBJECT: Partial satisfaction of Economic Development Fund conditional grant to  

   Marriott International, Inc. 

 

 

I want to inform the County Council of my consent to forgive a portion of the Economic 

Development Fund conditional grant to Marriott International, Inc. (“Marriott”). The County and 

Marriott entered into an Economic Development Agreement on May 4, 2017 for a conditional 

grant in the amount of $22,000,000 to facilitate the construction of a new corporate headquarters 

and adjacent hotel in Bethesda. The grant was payable in 4 consecutive annual disbursements of 

$5,500,000, subject to the company meeting the performance requirements of the grant. The 

grant was fully disbursed on August 11, 2021. 

 

The terms of the conditional grant (Exhibit B Item 3. Early Forgiveness) also allow for early 

forgiveness, i.e., satisfaction of portions of the grant in $5,500,000 increments conditioned  

upon meeting performance requirements by certain dates. Under this provision, Marriott has 

requested early forgiveness of the initial $5,500,000 disbursement that was made on October 12, 

2018 as it has satisfied the requirement of maintaining average annual employment of 3,250 

permanent employees and 250 part-time or contract employees through December 31, 2022.  

As of that date, average annual employment of Marriott employees was 3,587 and 350 third-

party contractors which satisfies the requirement for partial forgiveness. A synopsis of the 

company’s employment and a copy of the Economic Development Fund Agreement are included 

with this memo for reference. 

 

Enclosed (2) 

 
 



Marriott International - Employment Analysis throught CY2022

2017 F/T Employees FTE Equivalent1 Total

Marriott Employees 3,885 97 3,982
Contract Employees:
Soodexo 36 0 36
Accenture, LLP 190 0 190

Subtotal Subcontractors 226 0 226

Total CY2017 4,111 97 4,208

2018 F/T Employees FTE Equivalent1 Total

Marriott Employees 4,148 84 4,232
Contract Employees:
Soodexo* 26 0 26
Accenture, LLP 257 0 257
Publicis Sapient 21 0 21
PEOPLESCOUT, Inc 19 6 25
IBM 28 0 28
Bright Horizons… 24 2 26
TEK Systems, Inc. 6 58 64
Mindtree 54 11 65

Subtotal Subcontractors 435 77 512
* missing page from report
Total CY2018 4,583 161 4,744

2019 F/T Employees FTE Equivalent1 Total

Marriott Employees 4,346 0 4,346
Contract Employees:
Soodexo* 21 0 21
Accenture, LLP 109 0 109
Deloitte & Touche, LLP 2 53 55
PEOPLESCOUT, Inc 25 0 25
IBM 29 0 29
Bright Horizons… 24 24
TEK Systems, Inc. 9 22 31
Mindtree 93 0 93
Cap Tech Ventures 51 0 51
Sapient Corporation 11 0 11

Subtotal Subcontractors 374 75 449

Total  CY2019 4,720 75 4,795
* Sodexo - 21 of Sodexo's 42 reported workers have houly salaries lower than 200% of
   Federal Minimum Wage as of October 1, 2016 - $14.50, and therefore are not counted.

2020 F/T Employees FTE Equivalent1 Total

Marriott Employees* 2883 0 2883
Contract Employees:
PeopleScout, Inc. 16 16
Cognizant Technology 1 1
Sodexo 1 1
Tata Consultancy 38 38
IBM 24 24
Deloitte & Touche, LLP 12 12
Accenture, LLP** 35 35

Subtotal Subcontractors 127 0 127
* Excludes 6 ineligible employees
**Accenture Certified 63, however only 35 are assigned to Marriott HQ
1  No FTE equivalents reported for FCY2020
Total CY2020 3010 3010

2021 F/T Employees FTE Equivalent1 Total

Marriott Employees* 3039 0 3039
Contract Employees:
Accenture, LLP** 281 281
Aramark Services, Inc 4 4
Deloitte & Touche, LLP 22 22
IBM 39 39
Mindtree 63 63
PeopleScout, Inc. 19 19
Cognizant Tech Solutions 1 1
Sodexo 1 1

Subtotal Subcontractors 430 430
Total CY21 3469 3469

2022 F/T Employees FTE Equivalent1 Total

Marriott Employees* 3039 3039
Contract Employees:
Accenture 114 114
Aramark 40 40
AT&T 15 15
Bright Horizons 6 6
Deloitte 49 49
IBM 51 51
LTIMindtree 78 78

Subtotal Subcontractors 353 353
Total CY22 3392 3392

6 Year Average: F/T Employees FTE Equivalent1 Total
Marriott 3,557 30 3,587

3rd Party Contractors 324 25 350
3,936

The Company exceeds the stipulated performance requirements of at least  3,250 full time 
Marriot Employees and 250 third-party contractors 
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